
Spelthorne Borough Council, Council Offices, Knowle Green

Staines-upon-Thames TW18 1XB

www.spelthorne.gov.uk customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk Telephone 01784 451499

222

Please reply to: 
Contact: Gillian Scott
Service: Committee Services
Direct line: 01784 444243
E-mail: g.scott@spelthorne.gov.uk
Date: 22 January 2019

Notice of meeting

Cabinet 

Date: Wednesday, 30 January 2019

Time: 7.00 pm

Place: Goddard Room, Council Offices, Knowle Green, Staines-upon-Thames

The members of the Cabinet Cabinet member areas of responsibility
I.T.E. Harvey (Leader) Leader and Council Policy co-ordination
A.C. Harman (Deputy Leader) Deputy Leader and Communications
M.M. Attewell Community Wellbeing
C. Barnard Planning and Economic Development
J.R. Boughtflower Corporate Management
M.P.C. Francis Housing
D. Patel Environment and Compliance
O. Rybinski Customer Service, Estates and Transport
H.R.D. Williams Finance

http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/
mailto:customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk


2

AGENDA

Page nos.

1.  Apologies for absence
To receive any apologies for non-attendance.

2.  Minutes 5 - 12
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 11 December 2018 as a 
correct record.

3.  Disclosures of Interest
To receive any disclosures of interest from councillors in accordance 
with the Council’s Code of Conduct for members.

4.  Leader's announcements
To receive any announcements from the Leader.

5.  Treasury Management Strategy Statement - Key Decision 13 - 30
Councillor H. R. Williams

To consider the Treasury Management Strategy for 2019/20 and 
recommend it to Council for approval.

6.  Urgent Action
To note an urgent action undertaken by the Chief Executive.

On 28 November 2018 the Chief Executive in consultation with the 
Leader, agreed a letting within the Thames Tower, Reading. This is not 
a Key Decision. The matter was considered as an urgent action 
because the lease had to be signed before the Cabinet was next due to 
meet.

7.  Urgent items
To consider any items which the Chairman considers as urgent.

8.  Exempt Business
To move the exclusion of the Press/Public for the following item, in view 
of the likely disclosure of exempt information within the meaning of Part 
1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, as amended by 
the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 and by the 
Local Government (Access to information) (Variation) Order 2006.



3

9.  Exempt report - Acquisition update 31 - 70
Councillor I.T.E. Harvey

To receive an update on progress with the acquisition of a property for 
financial and asset investment purposes.

Reason for exemption
This report contains exempt information within the meaning of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, as amended by the 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 and by the Local 
Government (Access to information) (Variation) Order 2006 Paragraph 3 
– Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information) and in all the 
circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information 
because, disclosure to the public would prejudice the financial position 
of the authority in the bidding process for the site by allowing other 
bidders to know the position of the Council.  This in turn prejudices the 
Council by (i) distorting the bids process and (ii) prejudicing the 
opportunity for the Council to acquire a site through the Council for the 
prudent management of its financial affairs and provision of housing.



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes of Cabinet

11 December 2018

Present:

Councillor I.T.E. Harvey, Leader and Council Policy co-ordination
Councillor A.C. Harman, Deputy Leader and Communications

Councillor M.M. Attewell, Community Wellbeing
Councillor J.R. Boughtflower, Corporate Management

Councillor M.P.C. Francis, Housing
Councillor O. Rybinski, Customer Service, Estates and Transport

Councillor H.R.D. Williams, Finance

Apologies:
Councillor C. Barnard, Planning and Economic Development
Councillor D. Patel, Environment and Compliance

2547  Minutes 
The minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 21 November 2018 were agreed 
as a correct record.

2548  Disclosures of Interest 
There were no disclosures of interest in relation to the items being heard in 
public.
A non-pecuniary interest was disclosed in relation to exempt item 13 – 
Investment Acquisition T. Details of this are recorded in the exempt minutes 
for this item.  

2549  Leader's announcements 
The following are the latest service updates from various Council 
departments.

Firstly, it is with great sadness that I report the passing of former councillor 
and past mayor, Sam Budd. Sam was a long-serving, hard-working public 
servant who will be sorely missed by all who knew him. My sympathies go to 
his family at this sad time. 

The Council is calling on Heathrow to conduct meaningful community 
engagement and is urging residents to respond to the public consultations 
starting in January 2019. 

We are also calling for Government to approve the SLR scheme which we 
believe is the quickest and cheapest option to improve airport connectivity 
from the south and west. We think this will bring enormous economic benefits 
to the local area, have real benefits to residents and fewer environmental 
impacts compared to heavy rail schemes, including protecting Staines Moor.

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Cabinet, 11 December 2018 - continued

An extensive list of frequently asked questions have been added to the 
Council's website to explain the rationale behind Spelthorne's commercial 
investment strategy. 
To be located in Staines-upon-Thames, we have recently announced that an 
initiative to provide dynamic business incubation space for start-ups and pre-
starts in the science, technology and creative sectors will be opening in spring 
2019. To be known as the Heathrow Launchpad, the scheme is a new 
partnership between Spelthorne Borough Council, Royal Holloway University 
of London and the University of Surrey.

Works to provide extra space for people with additional support needs have 
commenced at the Greeno Centre.

Work is also progressing to clear the west wing of the Council Offices in 
preparation for development into residential.

Mayor Cllr Jean Pinkerton, OBE, celebrated the winners of a ‘what I love 
about Spelthorne’ creative arts competition at an awards ceremony on 12 
November. 

The Council is actively encouraging residents to respond to the five Surrey 
County Council consultations on Children’s Centres, Community Recycling 
Centres, SEND, Libraries and Concessionary Bus Travel. The Council will be 
also making robust representations.

A special ceremony was held on 14 November to mark the planting of 100 
trees in Thameside, Laleham Park, to commemorate the centenary of the end 
of the First World War. We plan to plant a tree for every soldier lost during that 
conflict over the coming months as a fitting and lasting tribute. 

Staying on the tree theme, five trees donated to MP Kwasi Kwarteng were 
planted in Staines Park on 16 November. The trees were from the Woodlands 
Trust, Queens Commonwealth Canopy project, to mark Her Majesty's lifetime 
of service to the Commonwealth. 

Following our assurance to residents that the new leisure centre will not be 
sited in Staines Park, we are looking obtaining a “Fields in Trust” designation 
for the Park.

To spread a little Christmas cheer and support our town centre shops, we are 
offering free parking in our town centre car parks for late night shopping on 
Thursdays in the run up to Christmas. Festive events include an Art Open 
Day, Christmas Explorer, Santa Stroll, a free Christmas lunch at the Greeno 
Centre and the ever popular Lantern event held in Stanwell on 30 November.

2550  Outline Budget 2019/20 - 2022/23 - Key Decision 
Cabinet considered a report on the Outline Budget for 2019/20 to 2022/23 
which outlined the current expected budget gaps for 2019/20 and the 
following three years.

Page 6



Cabinet, 11 December 2018 - continued

The Provisional Local Government Funding settlement had been delayed until 
after the ‘meaningful vote’ in Parliament on the Brexit deal which had been 
due to take place on 11 December 2018 but had now been postponed.  The 
specifics of the funding settlement would be communicated as soon as they 
were known and this was now expected to be before Christmas.

Officers were working up proposals to close the budget gaps as set out at 
paragraph 1.5 of the report, which currently stood at £1.5m, £4.8m, £6m and 
£4.1 respectively, and would bring these to Cabinet in the New Year.

Resolved that:
1. The net budgeted expenditure (before investment and use of reserves) for 
2019-20 be set at a maximum level of £22.2m; 
2. Cabinet support the overall strategy set out in the report for addressing 
efficiencies and achieving medium term financial sustainability; and
3. the financial health indicators set out in paragraph 3.23 be agreed.

2551  Treasury Management Strategy - half yearly report 
Cabinet considered the half yearly report on the Treasury Management 
Strategy for 2018/19.

Borrowing totalled £1,033m as at 30 September 2018, of which £1,008m was 
loans from the PWLB (Public Works Loan Board) and £25m from local 
authorities.

The Council’s investment portfolio totalled £68.8m as at 30 September 2018.  
This included pooled investment funds of £17.5m with an income return of 
4.46%.

Resolved to note the treasury position achieved during the first six months of 
2018/19 and the financial environment in global markets.

2552  Proposal for Local pay, terms and conditions 
Councillor J. Boughtflower, Portfolio Holder for Corporate Management, 
advised Cabinet that a Collective Agreement had been signed on 10 
December 2018. The report was therefore withdrawn.

2553  Urgent Action 
Cabinet noted urgent action taken by the Chief Executive in consultation with 
the Leader in relation to a letting within the Porter Building, Slough. The 
matter was considered as an urgent action because the lease had to be 
signed before the Cabinet was next due to meet.

2554  Urgent items 
An urgent item had been notified and was dealt with as an exempt matter at 
the end of the agenda as Item 13 – Investment Acquisition T.

Page 7



Cabinet, 11 December 2018 - continued

2555  Exempt Business 
Resolved to move the exclusion of the Press and Public for the following item 
in view of the likely disclosure of exempt information within the meaning of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, as amended by 
the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 and by the Local 
Government (Access to information)
(Variation) Order 2006.

2556  Exempt report - Acquisition of Property R - Key Decision 
Paragraph 3 – Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information).

Cabinet considered an exempt report regarding the acquisition of Property ‘R’.

Alternative options considered:
Formally agree not to submit a bid

Resolved to:
 Approve the acquisition of the investment including forward funding 

identified in the report;

 Formally agree the offer conditional submitted, and authorise the Chief 
Executive (and delegated Officers) to undertake any necessary 
subsequent negotiations (including a further bid if required) and 
complete the acquisition of the asset (in consultation with the Chief 
Finance Officer, the Leader and the Cabinet Member for Finance);

 Authorise the Chief Finance Officer to decide (i) the most financially 
advantageous funding arrangements for the purchase, (ii) the most tax 
efficient method of holding the asset, and overall to ensure the 
acquisition is prudentially affordable;  

 Authorise the Head of Corporate Governance to enter into any legal 
documentation necessary to acquire the asset; and 

 Agree to exempt Contract Standing Orders in respect of our Advisors. 

Reason for recommendation:
It will bring in a steady income stream in order for the Council to deliver its 
ambitious housing and regeneration programme across the Borough to help 
meet the needs of its residents. The Council needs to generate additional 
income to offset the revenue impacts of undertaking these projects across the 
Borough.

Page 8



Cabinet, 11 December 2018 - continued

2557  Exempt report - Acquisition of Property S - Key Decision 
Paragraph 3 – Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information).

Cabinet considered an exempt report regarding the acquisition of Property ‘S’.

Alternative options considered:
Formally agree not to submit a bid

Resolved to:
 Approve the acquisition of the investment asset identified in this report;

 Formally agree the offer conditional submitted, and authorise the Chief 
Executive (and delegated Officers) to undertake any necessary 
subsequent negotiations (including a further bid if required) and 
complete the acquisition of the asset (in consultation with the Chief 
Finance Officer, the Leader and the Cabinet Member for Finance);

 Authorise the Chief Finance Officer to decide (i) the most financially 
advantageous funding arrangements for the purchase, (ii) the most tax 
efficient method of holding the asset, and overall to ensure the 
acquisition is prudentially affordable;  

 Authorise the Head of Corporate Governance to enter into any legal 
documentation necessary to acquire the asset; and 

 Agree to exempt Contract Standing Orders in respect of our Advisors. 

Reason for recommendation:
It will bring in a steady income stream in order for the Council to deliver its 
ambitious housing and regeneration programme across the Borough to help 
meet the needs of its residents. The Council needs to generate additional 
income to offset the revenue impacts of undertaking these projects across the 
Borough.

2558  *Urgent Business: Exempt report - Investment Acquisition T - 
Key Decision 

Paragraph 3 – Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information).

A member disclosed a non-pecuniary interest in relation to this item and left 
the meeting room during the debate and decision on this matter.

Cabinet considered an exempt report regarding investment acquisition ‘T’ as 
urgent business.

In accordance with Urgent Action provisions, the Chairman of Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee had agreed that the matter was urgent and could not 
reasonably be deferred.

Page 9



Cabinet, 11 December 2018 - continued

Reasons for urgency
The site had very recently come to the attention of the Council as a 
redevelopment opportunity. The timescales for bidding were extremely tight 
and it was not possible to defer the decision until the expiry of 28 working 
days for the publication of notices under the Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 
2012, as the Council would have missed the deadline for submitting its bid to 
acquire the site.  The deadline for submitting bids was Wednesday 12 
December 2018.

Alternative options considered:
Formally agree not to submit a bid

Resolved to:
 Approve the acquisition of the site and its future development for  

Housing purposes as identified in this report;

 Agree the offer submitted for the acquisition, and authorise the Chief 
Executive (and delegated Officers) to undertake any necessary 
subsequent negotiations (including a further bid if required) and 
complete the acquisition of the asset (in consultation with the Chief 
Finance Officer, the Leader and the Cabinet Member for Finance);

 Authorise the Chief Finance Officer to decide (i) the most financially 
advantageous funding arrangements for the purchase, (ii) the most tax 
efficient method of holding the asset to include the transfer of the asset 
into Knowle Green Estates Limited if an when appropriate to do so, and 
overall to ensure the acquisition is prudentially affordable;  

 Authorise the Head of Corporate Governance to enter into any legal 
documentation necessary to acquire and develop the asset including 
any documentation required for any potential transfer of the asset to 
Knowle Green Estates Limited; 

 Agree to exempt Contract Standing Orders in respect of our Advisors;

 Delegate the selection of the design team and the contractor to the 
Group Head of Regeneration and Growth in consultation with the 
Portfolio Holder. 

 Recommend to Council the approval of the budget for the design 
team and the contractor for the development of the site. 

Reason for recommendation:
The site will deliver a steady income stream once developed which will 
support the Council to deliver its ambitious housing and regeneration 
programme across the Borough to help meet the needs of its residents. The 
Council needs to generate additional income to offset the revenue impacts of 
undertaking these projects across the Borough.

Page 10



Cabinet, 11 December 2018 - continued

NOTES:-

(1) Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are reminded 
that under Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 16, the “call-in” 
procedure shall not apply to recommendations the Cabinet makes 
to the Council.  The matters on which recommendations have 
been made to the Council, if any, are identified with an asterisk [*] 
in the above Minutes.

(2) Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are entitled to 
call in decisions taken by the Cabinet for scrutiny before they are 
implemented, other than any recommendations covered under (1) 
above.

(3) Within five working days of the date on which a decision of the 
Cabinet or a Cabinet Member is published, not less than three 
members [one of whom must be the Chairman] of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee are able to "call in" a decision;

(4) To avoid delay in considering an item "called in”, an extraordinary 
meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be convened 
within seven days of a "call in" being received if an ordinary 
meeting is not scheduled in that period;

(5) When calling in a Cabinet decision for review the members doing 
so should in their notice of "call in":-

 Outline their reasons for requiring a review;
 Indicate any further information they consider the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee needs to have before it 
in order to conduct a review in addition to the written 
report made by officers to the Cabinet; 

 Indicate whether, where the decision was taken collectively 
by the Cabinet, they wish the Leader or his nominee (who 
should normally be the Cabinet Member) or where the 
decision was taken by a Cabinet Member, the member of 
the Cabinet making the decision, to attend the committee 
meeting; and

 Indicate whether the officer making the report to the 
Cabinet or the Cabinet Member taking the decision or 
his/her representative should attend the meeting.

(6) The deadline of five working days for "call in" by Members of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee in relation to the above 
decisions by the Cabinet is the close of business on 19 December 
2018.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet

30 January 2019

Title Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2019/20

Purpose of the report To make a recommendation to Council on a Key Decision
Report Author Anna Russell, Deputy Chief Accountant
Cabinet Member Councillor Howard Williams Confidential No
Corporate Priority Financial Sustainability
Recommendations Cabinet are asked to recommend that Council approves the 

proposed Treasury Management Strategy for 2019/20 as set out 
in this report.

Reason for 
Recommendation

The Treasury Management strategy is fundamental to 
developing the financial sustainability of the Council.

1. Key issues
1.1 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury 

Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice 2017 Edition (the CIPFA 
Code) requires the Council to approve a treasury management strategy before 
the start of each financial year.

1.2 In addition, in March 2010, the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local 
Government (MHCLG) issued revised Guidance on Local Authority 
Investments that requires the Council to approve an investment strategy before 
the start of each financial year.

1.3 This report fulfils the Council’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act 
2003 to have regard to both the CIPFA Code and the MHCLG Guidance.

1.4 The Council has borrowed and invested substantial sums of money and is 
consequently exposed to financial risks including the loss of invested funds and 
the revenue effect of changing interest rates. The successful identification, 
monitoring and control of risk through the Treasury Management Strategy are 
therefore central to the Council’s prudent financial management.

1.5 In accordance with the MHCLG Guidance, the Council could be asked in future 
to approve a revised Treasury Management Strategy Statement should the 
assumptions on which this report is based change significantly. Such 
circumstances would include, for example, a large unexpected change in 
interest rates, in the Council’s Capital Programme or in the level of its 
investment balances.

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



 External Context - Economic background
1.6 The major external influence on the Council’s treasury management strategy 

for 2019/20 continues to be the UK’s progress in negotiating its exit from the 
European Union and agreeing future trading arrangements. 

1.7 Following weak figures in the first quarter of 2018 attributed to weather-related 
factors, UK GDP growth rebounded in the second quarter to 0.4%.  At an 
annual rate of only 1.2%, this remains below long term trend.  As economic 
growth had evolved broadly in line with its May Inflation Report forecast, the 
Bank of England’s (BoE) Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) voted 
unanimously for a rate rise of 0.25% in August 2018, taking Bank (base) Rate 
to 0.75%.  In November 2018, the MPC maintained Bank Rate at 0.75% while 
the Inflation Report showed that, compared to the August report, further interest 
rate increases may be required to bring inflation down to the 2% target over the 
forecast horizon.

1.8 The headline rate of UK Consumer Price Inflation fell back to 2.4% year-on-
year in September 2018 from 2.7% in August, as higher import and energy 
prices continued to hold inflation above the BoE target.   Labour market data is 
positive. The International Labour Organisation (ILO) unemployment rate fell to 
4%, its lowest level since 1975. The 3-month average annual growth rate for 
pay, excluding bonuses, rose to 3.1% in August providing some evidence that 
a shortage of labour is supporting wages.  However, adjusting for inflation, this 
means real wages were up by just 0.7% and are likely to have only a moderate 
impact on household spending.

1.9 While external inflationary pressures from energy costs and import prices are 
expected to subside, domestic pressures are projected to build over the 
forecast horizon, with the balance of these effects likely to keep inflation above 
the Bank of England’s target throughout most of their forecast horizon.  This 
means that strong real income growth is unlikely to materialise any time soon. 

1.10 As the US economy has continued to perform well, the Federal Reserve has 
maintained its monetary-tightening stance and pushed up its target range for 
the Federal Funds Rate.  The range was increased by 0.25% first in September, 
and then again by 0.25% in December to 2.25% - 2.50%.  Two further increases 
are expected in 2019.

1.11 The fallout from the US-China trade war continues which, combined with tighter 
monetary policy, risks contributing to a slowdown in global economic activity in 
2019.  Despite slower growth in the region, the European Central Bank has 
started conditioning markets for the end of quantitative easing as well as the 
timing of the first interest rate hike, currently expected in 2019, and the timing 
and magnitude of increases thereafter.
External Context - Credit Outlook

1.12 The big four UK banking groups have now divided their retail and investment 
banking divisions into separate legal entities, as listed below, under ringfencing 
legislation.  The ringfenced banks now conduct only lower risk retail banking 
activities.  Credit rating agencies have adjusted the ratings of some of these 
banks with the ringfenced banks generally being better rated than their non-
ringfenced counterparts. 

Page 14



Ringfenced retail bank Investment bank
Bank of Scotland
Barclays Bank UK Barclays Bank
HSBC UK Bank HSBC Bank
Lloyds Bank Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets
National Westminster Bank NatWest Markets
Royal Bank of Scotland
Ulster Bank

1.13 European banks are considering their approach to Brexit, with some looking to 
create new UK subsidiaries to ensure they can continue trading here. The credit 
strength of these new banks remains unknown, although parental support is 
expected to be high where required. The uncertainty caused by protracted 
negotiations between the UK and EU is weighing on the creditworthiness of 
banks with substantial operations in both UK and European jurisdictions.
External Context - Interest Rate Forecast

1.14 Following the increase in Bank Rate to 0.75% in August 2018, the Council’s 
treasury management adviser Arlingclose is forecasting two more 0.25% hikes 
during 2019 to take official UK interest rates to 1.25%.  The Bank of England’s 
MPC has maintained expectations for slow and steady rate rises over the 
forecast horizon.  The MPC continues to have a bias towards tighter monetary 
policy but is reluctant to push interest rate expectations too strongly. Arlingclose 
believes that MPC members consider both that ultra-low interest rates result in 
other economic problems, and that higher Bank Rate will be a more effective 
policy weapon should downside Brexit risks crystallise when rate cuts will be 
required.

1.15 The UK economic environment remains relatively soft, despite seemingly 
strong labour market data.  Arlingclose’s view is that the economy still faces a 
challenging outlook as it exits the European Union and Eurozone growth 
softens.  While assumptions are that a Brexit deal is struck and some 
agreement reached on transition and future trading arrangements before the 
UK leaves the EU, the possibility of a “no deal” Brexit still hangs over economic 
activity. As such, the risks to the interest rate forecast are considered firmly to 
the downside.

1.16 Gilt yields and hence long-term borrowing rates have remained at low levels 
but some upward movement from current levels is expected based on 
Arlingclose’s interest rate projections, due to the strength of the US economy 
and the ECB’s forward guidance on higher rates. Ten-year and 20-year gilt 
yields are forecast to remain around 1.5% and 2% respectively over the interest 
rate forecast horizon.  However, volatility arising from both economic and 
political events are likely to continue to offer borrowing opportunities.

1.17 A more detailed economic and interest rate forecast provided by Arlingclose is 
attached at Appendix A.

Page 15



1.18 For the purpose of setting the budget, it has been assumed that new 
investments will yield an average rate of 2.6%, and that new long-term loans 
will be borrowed at an average rate of 2.4%.
Local Context

1.19 On 31 December 2018, the Council held £1,032.8m of borrowing and £51.9m 
of investments. This is broken down further in Table 1 below. 

Table 1: Current Investment & Debt Portfolio Position

As at 31.12.2018
Actual 

Portfolio
Average 

Rate
 £m %
  
External Borrowing:  
Public Works Loan Board (1,007.6) 2.9 
Local Authorities (short term) (25.0) 1.0 
Total Gross External Debt (1,032.6)  
Long-Term Investments:  
Pooled Fund Investments 19.5 4.5 
Fixed Term Loan – Housing Association 2.0 3.6 
Funding Circle 0.3 5.5 
Short-Term Investments:  

Local Authorities 25.0 0.9 
Other Investment funds 5.0 1.3 
Money Market Funds 33.5 0.7 

Total Investments 85.3  
Net (borrowing) / investments (947.3)  

Non-treasury investments:   
Investment  property 990.9 4.0 

1.20 Funding Circle is a peer-to-peer lending platform which provides an alternative 
borrowing mechanism for small businesses. This investment was made in April 
2015 and is being viewed as a diversification tool within the investment portfolio 
and also an economic development opportunity enabling the Council to support 
local businesses where demand exists.

1.21 Forecast changes in the capital financing requirement (CFR), investments and 
borrowing are shown in the balance sheet summary in Table 2 next.

Page 16



Table 2: Balance sheet summary and forecast

 Actual Forecast Estimate Estimate Estimate
 31.03.2018 31.03.2019 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2022
 £m £m £m £m £m
Investment Properties 676 1,074 1,339 1,389 1,361 
Property Development 0 0 49 84 105 
General Fund services 6 13 20 27 34 
Total CFR* 682 1,087 1,408 1,500 1,500 
Less: External 
borrowing** (665) (1,077) (1,377) (1,616) (1,616)

Internal borrowing 17 10 31 (116) (116)
Usable reserves (27) (87) (42) (41) (34)
Working capital (16) (7) (9) (9) (7)
Net available funds 26 84 20 166 157 
*   31.03.2018 includes CFR brought forwards
** shows only loans to which the Authority is committed.

1.22 The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by the CFR, 
while usable reserves and working capital are the underlying resources 
available for investment.  The Council’s current strategy is to maintain 
borrowing and investments below their underlying levels, sometimes known as 
internal borrowing.

1.23 The Council has an increasing CFR due to the capital programme.  This is with 
minimal investment, and the Council will therefore be required to borrow up to 
£951m over the period 2018/19 to 2021/22.

1.24 CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities recommends 
that an authority’s total debt be lower than its highest forecast CFR over the 
next three years.  Table 2 shows that the Authority expects to comply with this 
recommendation during 2019/20 and in each of the subsequent years.  
Local context - Liability benchmark
To compare the Council’s actual borrowing against an alternative strategy, a 
liability benchmark (a measure of risk proposed by CIPFA) has been calculated 
showing the lowest risk level of borrowing. This assumes the same forecasts 
as Table 2 above, but that investments are kept to a minimum level of £10m at 
each year-end.  This minimum investment reflects the Council’s status as a 
professional client in terms of MIFD requirements (see 2.49).

Page 17



Table 3: Liability benchmark

 Actual Forecast Estimate Estimate Estimate
 31.03.2018 31.03.2019 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2022
 £m £m £m £m £m
CFR 682 1,087 1,408 1,500 1,500 
Less: Usable reserves (27) (87) (42) (41) (34)
Less: Working capital (16) (7) (9) (9) (7)
Minimum investment 10 10 10 10 10 
Liability benchmark 649 1,003 1,367 1,460 1,469 

1.25 The Liability benchmark indicates that the required minimum level of borrowing. 
is forecast to be £1,003m as at 31 March 2019 after taking into account of 
usable reserves, working capital and the minimum investment, in this case set 
at £10m for MIFD purposes.

2. Borrowing and Investment Strategies
Borrowing Strategy

2.1 The Council currently holds £1,032.8m of loans. The Council was debt free 
before 2016/17, when the decision was taken to make strategic property 
acquisitions based on the opportunities available.  The Council may also borrow 
on a short-term basis to fund VAT elements of property acquisitions, which are 
recovered from HMRC.

2.2 On 19 July 2018, Council approved a supplementary bid of £594.9m taking the 
capital programme provision for asset acquisitions to £819.5m. At the same 
time, the Council’s Authorised Borrowing Limit was increased to £1,500m. This 
is to enable the Council to fund housing developments and place shaping within 
the Borough and also to fund acquisition of investment assets which will 
generate an income stream to offset the revenue impacts of housing delivery 
projects in their development stage.  Sums from investment property rental 
income are also set aside to increase sinking funds which contribute towards 
financing of future property-related costs. 

2.3 Objectives: The Council’s chief objective when borrowing money is to strike 
an appropriately low risk balance between securing low interest costs and 
achieving certainty of those costs over the period for which funds are required. 
The flexibility to renegotiate loans should the Council’s long-term plans change 
is a secondary objective.

2.4 Strategy: Given the significant cuts to public expenditure and in particular to 
local government funding, the Council’s borrowing strategy continues to 
address the key issue of affordability without compromising the longer term 
stability of the debt portfolio.

2.5 The Council will consider forward-starting loans, where the interest rate is fixed 
in advance, but the cash is received in later periods. This would enable certainty 
of cost to be achieved without suffering a cost of carry in the intervening period.  
Forward starting loans would facilitate effective funding of major development 
projects such as those planned for the property portfolio.

Page 18



2.6 With short-term interest rates currently much lower than long-term rates, 
borrowing options include using short-term loans or internal resources.  These 
are likely to be more cost effective than longer term borrowing (despite 
foregone investment income) and would reduce overall treasury risk.  

2.7 The Council may borrow short-term loans to cover unplanned cash flow 
shortages that may occur.

2.8 The Council is working with Arlingclose to identify further alternative funding 
options for future acquisitions and development projects, and at options for 
diversifying the Council’s debt to build a portfolio from a number of sources. 

2.9 The benefits of options will be monitored against the potential for incurring 
additional costs by deferring borrowing into future years when long-term 
borrowing rates are forecast to rise modestly. Arlingclose will assist the Council 
with this ‘cost of carry’ and breakeven analysis. The analysis may determine 
whether the Council borrows additional sums at long-term fixed rates in 
2019/20 with a view to keeping future interest costs low, even if this causes 
additional cost in the short term.

2.10 Sources of borrowing: The approved sources of long-term and short-term 
borrowing are:
• Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) and any successor body
• any institution approved for investments (see below)
• any other bank or building society authorised to operate in the UK
• any other UK public sector body
• UK public and private sector pension funds (except Surrey Pension Fund)
• Capital market bond investors
• UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc and other special purpose companies 

created to enable local authority bond issues
2.11 Long-term borrowing to date has focused on fixed rate funding options from the 

Public Works Loan Board (PWLB), giving the Council certainty over its future 
obligations.  An opportunity in 2017/18 to get fixed rate funding from the 
Phoenix investment fund fell through after Northamptonshire County Council’s 
section 151 officer issued a section 114 notice.  Phoenix subsequently 
increased the rate on the loan offer, making the offer less favourable than 
PWLB funding.

2.12 Other sources of debt finance: In addition, capital finance may be raised by 
the following methods that are not borrowing, but may be classed as other debt 
liabilities:
• Leasing 
• hire purchase
• Private Finance Initiative 
• sale and leaseback

Page 19



2.13 Municipal Bonds Agency: UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc was established 
in 2014 by the Local Government Association as an alternative to the PWLB.  
The agency plans to issue bonds on the capital markets and lend the proceeds 
to local authorities.  This will be a more complicated source of finance than the 
PWLB for two reasons: borrowing authorities will be required to provide bond 
investors with a joint and several guarantee to refund their investment in the 
event that the agency is unable to for any reason; and there will be a lead time 
of several months between committing to borrow and knowing the interest rate 
payable. Any decision to borrow from the Agency will therefore be the subject 
of a separate report to Council.

2.14 LOBOs: The Council does not hold (and never has held) LOBO (Lender’s 
Option Borrower’s Option) loans, which expose borrowers to a relatively high 
refinancing risk.  A LOBO lender has the option to propose an increase in the 
interest rate at set dates, following which the borrower would have the option 
to either accept the new rate or to repay the loan at no additional cost.  

2.15 Short-term and Variable Rate loans: These loans leave the Council exposed 
to the risk of short-term interest rate rises and are therefore subject to the 
interest rate exposure limits in the treasury management indicators below.

2.16 Debt Rescheduling: The PWLB allows authorities to repay loans before 
maturity and either pay a premium or receive a discount according to a set 
formula based on current interest rates. Other lenders may also be prepared to 
negotiate premature redemption terms. The Council may take advantage of this 
and replace some loans with new loans, or repay loans without replacement, 
where this is expected to lead to an overall cost saving or a reduction in risk.
Investment Strategy

2.17 The Council holds significant levels of invested funds, representing income 
received in advance of expenditure plus balances and reserves held. Total 
long-term investments are £21.8m as at the end of November 2018. These 
levels are expected to be increase by £15m by 2019/20, This may be increased 
further if there are significant additional capital receipts during 2019/20 and it is 
agreed that these are to be invested. Total investments are higher throughout 
the financial year and are monitored closely and maintained at appropriate 
levels as part of managing short-term cash-flow requirements of the Council.

2.18 Objectives: Both the CIPFA Code and the MHCLG Guidance require the 
Council to invest its funds prudently, and to have regard to the security and 
liquidity of its investments before seeking the highest yield (rate of return). The 
Council’s objective when investing money is to strike an appropriate balance 
between risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults 
and the risk of receiving unsuitably low investment income. Where balances 
are expected to be invested for more than one year, the Council will aim to 
achieve a total return that is equal or higher than the prevailing rate of inflation, 
in order to maintain the spending power of the sum invested.

2.19 Negative interest rates: If the UK enters into a recession in 2019/20, there is 
a small chance that the Bank of England could set Bank Rate at or below zero, 
which would probably feed through to negative interest rates on all low risk, 
short-term investment options. This situation already exists in many other 
European countries. In this event, security would be measured as receiving the 
contractually agreed amount at maturity, even though this may be less than the 
amount originally invested.

Page 20



2.20 Approved counterparties: The Council may invest its surplus funds with any 
of the counterparty types in Table 4 below, subject to the cash limits (per 
counterparty) and the time limits shown.

2.21 The cash limits shown have been agreed in conjunction with our treasury 
advisers, to enable the Council to have sufficient flexibility within the strategy 
being set to manage funds appropriately as they are received. This can 
sometimes include holding funds in advance of need in relation to making 
strategic acquisitions. 

Table 4: Approved investment counterparties and limits

Credit 
Rating

Banks 
Unsecured

Banks
Secured Government Corporates Registered 

Providers

UK Gov n/a n/a £ Unlimited
50 years n/a n/a

AAA £5m
5 years

£10m
20 years

£10m
50 years

£5m
20 years

£5m
20 years

AA+ £5m
5 years

£5m
10 years

£5m
25 years

£5m
10 years

£5m
10 years

AA £5m
4 years

£5m
5 years

£5m
15 years

£5m
5 years

£5m
10 years

AA- £5m
3 years

£5m
4 years

£5m
10 years

£5m
4 years

£5m
10 years

A+ £5m
2 years

£5m
3 years

£5m
5 years

£5m
3 years

£5m
5 years

A £5m
13 months

£5m
2 years

£5m
5 years

£5m
2 years

£5m
5 years

A- £5m
6 months

£5m
13 months

£5m
5 years

£5m
13 months

£5m
5 years

None £2m
6 months n/a £5m

25 years
£1m
5 years

£1m
5 years

Pooled 
funds £5m per fund at point of investment

This table must be read in conjunction with the notes below.

2.22 Credit Rating: Investment limits are set by reference to the lowest published 
long-term credit rating from a selection of external rating agencies. Where 
available, the credit rating relevant to the specific investment or class of 
investment is used; otherwise the counterparty credit rating is used. However, 
investment decisions are never made solely based on credit ratings, and all 
other relevant factors including external advice will be taken into account.

2.23 Banks Unsecured: Accounts, deposits, certificates of deposit and senior 
unsecured bonds with banks and building societies, other than multilateral 
development banks. These investments are subject to the risk of credit loss via 
a bail-in should the regulator determine that the bank is failing or likely to fail. 
See below for arrangements relating to operational bank accounts.

Page 21



2.24 Banks Secured: Covered bonds, reverse repurchase agreements and other 
collateralised arrangements with banks and building societies. These 
investments are secured on the bank’s assets, which limits the potential losses 
in the unlikely event of insolvency, and means that they are exempt from bail-
in. Where there is no investment specific credit rating, but the collateral upon 
which the investment is secured has a credit rating, the higher of the collateral 
credit rating and the counterparty credit rating will be used to determine cash 
and time limits. The combined secured and unsecured investments in any one 
bank will not exceed the cash limit for secured investments.

2.25 Government: Loans, bonds and bills issued or guaranteed by national 
governments, regional and local authorities and multilateral development 
banks. These investments are not subject to bail-in, and there is generally a 
lower risk of insolvency, although they are not zero risk. Investments with the 
UK Central Government may be made in unlimited amounts for up to 50 years.

2.26 Corporates: Loans, bonds and commercial paper issued by companies other 
than banks and registered providers. These investments are not subject to bail-
in, but are exposed to the risk of the company going insolvent. Loans to unrated 
companies would only be made, either following a financial or credit 
assessment or as part of a diversified pool in order to spread the risk widely.

2.27 Registered Providers: Loans and bonds issued by, guaranteed by or secured 
on the assets of Registered Providers of Social Housing and Registered Social 
Landlords, formerly known as Housing Associations. These bodies are tightly 
regulated by the Regulator of Social Housing.  As providers of public services, 
they retain the likelihood of receiving government support if needed. 

2.28 Pooled Funds: Shares or units in diversified investment vehicles consisting of 
any of the above investment types, plus equity shares and property. These 
funds have the advantage of providing wide diversification of investment risks, 
coupled with the services of a professional fund manager in return for a fee. 
Short-term Money Market Funds that offer same-day liquidity and very low or 
no volatility will be used as an alternative to instant access bank accounts, while 
pooled funds whose value changes with market prices and/or have a notice 
period will be used for longer investment periods. 

2.29 Bond, equity and property funds offer enhanced returns over the longer term, 
but are more volatile in the short term. These allow the Council to diversify into 
asset classes other than cash without the need to own and manage the 
underlying investments. Because these funds have no defined maturity date 
and are available for withdrawal after a notice period, their performance and 
continued suitability in meeting the Council’s investment objectives will be 
monitored regularly.

2.30 Real estate investment trusts: Shares in companies that invest mainly in real 
estate and pay the majority of their rental income to investors in a similar 
manner to pooled property funds. As with property funds, REITs offer enhanced 
returns over the longer term, but are more volatile especially as the share price 
reflects changing demand for the shares as well as changes in the value of the 
underlying properties.

Page 22



2.31 Operational bank accounts: The Council may incur operational exposures, 
for example though current accounts, collection accounts and merchant 
acquiring services, to any UK bank with credit ratings no lower than BBB- and 
with assets greater than £25 billion. These are not classed as investments, but 
are still subject to the risk of a bank bail-in, and balances will therefore be kept 
below £500,000 per bank as far as practicably possible. The Bank of England 
has stated that in the event of failure, banks with assets greater than £25 billion 
are more likely to be bailed-in than made insolvent, increasing the chance of 
the Council maintaining operational continuity.

2.32 Risk Assessment and Credit Ratings: Credit ratings are obtained and 
monitored by the Council’s treasury advisers, who will notify changes in ratings 
as they occur. Where an entity has its credit rating downgraded so that it fails 
to meet the approved investment criteria, then:
• no new investments will be made,
• any existing investments that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be, and
• full consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all other existing 

investments with the affected counterparty.
2.33 Where a credit rating agency announces that a credit rating is on review for 

possible downgrade (also known as “rating watch negative” or “credit watch 
negative”) so that it may fall below the approved rating criteria, then only 
investments that can be withdrawn on the next working day will be made with 
that organisation until the outcome of the review is announced. This policy will 
not apply to negative outlooks, which indicate a long-term direction of travel 
rather than an imminent change of rating.

2.34 Other information on the security of investments: The Council understands 
that credit ratings are good, but not perfect, predictors of investment default. 
Full regard will therefore be given to other available information on the credit 
quality of the organisations in which it invests, including credit default swap 
prices, financial statements, information on potential government support, 
reports in the quality financial press and analysis and advice from the 
Authority’s treasury management adviser. No investments will be made with an 
organisation if there are substantive doubts about its credit quality, even though 
it might otherwise meet the above criteria.

2.35 When deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness of all 
organisations, as happened in 2008 and 2011, this is not generally reflected in 
credit ratings, but can be seen in other market measures. In these 
circumstances, the Council will restrict its investments to those organisations 
of higher credit quality and reduce the maximum duration of its investments to 
maintain the required level of security. The extent of these restrictions will be in 
line with prevailing financial market conditions. If these restrictions mean that 
insufficient commercial organisations of high credit quality are available to 
invest the Council’s cash balances, then the surplus will be deposited with the 
UK Government, via the Debt Management Office or invested in government 
treasury bills for example, or with other local authorities. This will cause a 
reduction in the level of investment income earned, but will protect the principal 
sum invested.

Page 23



2.36 Investment Limits: The maximum that will be lent to any one organisation 
(other than the UK Government) will be £5 million, to mitigate the risk in the 
case of a single default.  A group of banks under the same ownership will be 
treated as a single organisation for limit purposes. Limits will also be placed on 
fund managers, investments in brokers’ nominee accounts, foreign countries 
and industry sectors as shown in Table 5 below. Investments in pooled funds 
and multilateral development banks do not count against the limit for any single 
foreign country, since the risk is diversified over many countries. 
Table 5: Investment limits

Cash limit
Any single organisation, except the UK Central 
Government £5m each

UK Central Government unlimited
Any group of organisations under the same 
ownership £7.5m per group

Any group of pooled funds under the same 
management

£15m per manager at 
point of investment

Negotiable instruments held in a broker’s nominee 
account £30m per broker

Foreign countries £5m per country
Registered Providers £10m in total
Unsecured investments with Building Societies £20m in total
Loans to unrated corporates £5m in total
Money Market Funds £50m in total

Treasury Management Indicators
2.37 Interest Rate Exposures: The Council is exposed principally to risk in terms 

of its exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowing and investments. 
The Council is heavily reliant on investment income to support expenditure and 
has several strategies in place for managing such risk. 

2.38 The Council’s treasury adviser provides analysis of market movements and 
assists in investment decisions based on their knowledge of current market 
conditions and interest rate forecasting. 

2.39 The Council generally invests medium- to long-term at fixed rates. The Council 
currently has no variable rate investments.

2.40 Fixed rate investments and borrowings are those where the rate of interest is 
fixed for at least 12 months, measured from the start of the financial year or the 
transaction date if later. All other instruments are classified as variable rate.

2.41 Maturity Structure of Borrowing: This indicator is set to control the Council’s 
exposure to refinancing risk. We calculate this as the amount of fixed rate 
borrowing we can have maturing in each period as a percentage of total 
projected borrowing that is at a fixed rate. The calculation takes fixed rate to be 
whether the borrowing was taken out at a fixed rate for a fixed period of time, 
regardless of that length of time. The upper and lower limits on the maturity 
structure of borrowing are as shown in Table 6. 

Page 24



Table 6: Maturity Structure of Borrowing

Upper Lower

Under 12 Months 10% 0%

1 – 2 Years 15% 0%

3 – 5 Years 20% 0%

6 – 10 Years 25% 0%

10 – 20 Years 50% 0%

20 – 30 Years 75% 0%

30 – 40 Years 90% 0%

40 – 50 Years 100% 0%

2.42 Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity of 
borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment. In 
the case of PWLB, this is the maturity date. 

2.43 This indicator allows us to have the percentage of borrowing maturing in each 
time period shown above, taking into account our current debt profile and 
providing an allowance for new borrowing, while having consideration to the 
capital programme.

2.44 Principal Sums Invested for Periods Longer than 364 days: The purpose 
of this indicator is to control the Council’s exposure to the risk of incurring losses 
by seeking early repayment of its investments. The limits on the long-term 
principal sum invested to final maturities beyond the period end are shown in 
Table 7, next.
Table 7: Principal limits

Price Risk Indicator 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Limit on principal invested beyond year end £50m £50m £50m

Related Matters
2.45 The CIPFA Code requires the Council to include the following in its treasury 

management strategy.
2.46 Financial Derivatives: Local authorities have previously made use of financial 

derivatives embedded into loans and investments both to reduce interest rate 
risk (e.g. interest rate collars and forward deals) and to reduce costs or increase 
income at the expense of greater risk (e.g. LOBO loans and callable deposits). 
The general power of competence in Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 
removes much of the uncertainty over local authorities’ use of standalone 
financial derivatives (i.e. those that are not embedded into a loan or 
investment).

Page 25



2.47 The Council will only use standalone financial derivatives (such as swaps, 
forwards, futures and options) where they can be clearly demonstrated to 
reduce the overall level of the financial risks that the Council is exposed to. 
Additional risks presented, such as credit exposure to derivative counterparties, 
will be taken into account when determining the overall level of risk. Embedded 
derivatives, including those present in pooled funds and forward-starting 
transactions, will not be subject to this policy, although the risks they present 
will be managed in line with the overall treasury risk management strategy.

2.48 Financial derivative transactions may be arranged with any organisation that 
meets the approved investment criteria. The current value of any amount due 
from a derivative counterparty will count against the counterparty credit limit 
and the relevant foreign country limit.

2.49 Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (MIFD): The Council has opted 
up to professional client status with its providers of financial services, including 
advisers, banks, brokers and fund managers, allowing access to a greater 
range of services but without the greater regulatory protections afforded to 
individuals and small companies. Given the size and range of the Council’s 
treasury management activities, the Chief Financial Officer believes this to be 
the most appropriate status.

3. Financial implications
3.1 The budget for investment income in 2019/20 is £1.29m, based on the existing 

investment portfolio. This has increased by £390k from 2018/19. If capital 
receipts from the disposal of Council assets materialise and it is decided that 
these sums are to be invested, then this figure will increase significantly. The 
alternative approach would be to use this funding for further strategic 
acquisitions. A full cost benefit analysis will be completed to determine the most 
advantageous approach if the Council finds itself in this position.

3.2 Debt interest paid in 2018/19 is forecast to be £19.0m. This reflects the costs 
the Council is now committed to pay following strategic acquisitions completed 
since 2016/17 to date, for which fixed rate finance was taken from the PWLB. 
It should be borne in mind that the gross rental income significantly exceeds 
this cost resulting in a net revenue surplus for the Council, forecast to be £9m 
(gross £51m) for 2018/19 after debt financing and set aside costs. With further 
acquisition opportunities being explored, and likely to be debt financed if taken 
up, additional financing costs are expected. However, these purchases are 
reliant on the opportunities that become available, if any, and therefore are not 
budgeted for in advance.

4. Risk considerations
4.1 The MHCLG Guidance and the CIPFA Code do not prescribe any particular 

treasury management strategy for local authorities to adopt. The Chief 
Financial Officer, having consulted the Cabinet Member for Finance, believes 
that the above strategy represents an appropriate balance between risk 
management and cost effectiveness. The strategy has been drawn up with 
detailed reference to the Council’s independent treasury and investment 
advisers, to ensure a prudent and robust approach in the strategy.

4.2 Some alternative strategies, with their financial and risk management 
implications, are listed below in Table 9.

Page 26



Table 9: Alternative strategies

Alternative Impact on income and 
expenditure

Impact on risk 
management

Invest in a narrower range 
of counterparties and/or 
for shorter times

Lower investment sums 
resulting in less Interest 
income

Lower chance of losses 
from credit related defaults 
although such losses may 
be greater

Also less diversity increases 
risk of losses 

Invest in a wider range of 
counterparties and/or for 
longer times

Interest income will be 
higher with increased 
investment sums

Increased risk of losses 
from credit related 
defaults, but any such 
losses may be smaller 
Increased diversity also 
decreases the risk of 
significant loss

Borrow additional sums at 
long-term fixed interest 
rates (not in advance of 
need)

Debt interest costs will 
rise; this is unlikely to 
be offset by higher 
investment income

Higher investment balance 
leading to a higher impact 
in the event of a default. 
However long-term 
interest costs may be more 
certain

Borrow short-term or 
variable loans instead of 
long-term fixed rates

Debt interest costs will 
initially be lower

Increases in debt interest 
costs will be broadly offset 
by rising investment 
income in the medium 
term, but long-term costs 
may be less certain 

Reduce level of borrowing Reduced debt interest 
costs

Less income for funding 
projects

 

Reduced investment 
balance leading to a lower 
impact in the event of a 
default

Less resources available for 
capital programme which 
would need to be reduced

5. Timetable for implementation
5.1 Treasury management is an ongoing activity and normally there is no specific 

timetable for implementation.

Background papers:

Appendix: Appendix A (two pages)

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A
Page 1 of 2

Appendix to the Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20

Arlingclose Economic & Interest Rate Forecast December 2018 

Arlingclose forecasts are given on the next page of this appendix.

Underlying assumptions: 

 Our central interest rate forecasts are predicated on there being a transitionary period 
following the UK’s official exit from the EU. 

 The MPC has a bias towards tighter monetary policy but is reluctant to push interest rate 
expectations too strongly. We believe that MPC members consider that: 1) tight labour 
markets will prompt inflationary pressure in the future, 2) ultra-low interest rates result 
in other economic problems, and 3) higher Bank Rate will be a more effective policy 
weapon if downside risks to growth crystallise.

 Both our projected outlook and the increase in the magnitude of political and economic 
risks facing the UK economy means we maintain the significant downside risks to our 
forecasts, despite the potential for slightly stronger growth next year as business 
investment rebounds should the EU Withdrawal Agreement be approved. The potential 
for severe economic outcomes has increased following the poor reception of the 
Withdrawal Agreement by MPs. We expect the Bank of England to hold at or reduce 
interest rates from current levels if Brexit risks materialise.

 The UK economic environment is relatively soft, despite seemingly strong labour market 
data. GDP growth recovered somewhat in the middle quarters of 2018, but more recent 
data suggests the economy slowed markedly in Q4. Our view is that the UK economy still 
faces a challenging outlook as the country exits the European Union and Eurozone 
economic growth softens.

 Cost pressures are easing but inflation is forecast to remain above the Bank’s 2% target 
through most of the forecast period. Lower oil prices have reduced inflationary pressure, 
but the tight labour market and decline in the value of sterling means inflation may 
remain above target for longer than expected. 

 Global economic growth is slowing. Despite slower growth, the European Central Bank is 
conditioning markets for the end of QE, the timing of the first rate hike (2019) and their 
path thereafter. More recent US data has placed pressure on the Federal Reserve to 
reduce the pace of monetary tightening – previous hikes and heightened expectations 
will, however, slow economic growth. 

 Central bank actions and geopolitical risks have and will continue to produce significant 
volatility in financial markets, including bond markets.

 Forecast: 

 The MPC has maintained expectations of a slow rise in interest rates over the forecast 
horizon, but recent events around Brexit have dampened interest rate expectations. Our 
central case is for Bank Rate to rise twice in 2019, after the UK exits the EU. The risks 
are weighted to the downside.

 Gilt yields have remained at low levels. We expect some upward movement from current 
levels based on our central case that the UK will enter a transitionary period following its 
EU exit in March 2019. However, our projected weak economic outlook and volatility 
arising from both economic and political events will continue to offer borrowing 
opportunities.

Page 29



Arlingclose Economic & Interest Rate forecast December 2018 Appendix A
% Page 2 of 2

PWLB Certainty Rate (Maturity Loans) = Gilt yield + 0.80%
PWLB Infrastructure Rate (Maturity Loans) = Gilt yield + 0.60%

Explanatory note: Upside risk is the increase over the central case.  Downside risk is the decrease below the central case.  For example, for the Dec-19 Official Bank Rate, 
when Arlingclose’s central case is 1.25%, the upside risk is +0.25% (ie a rate of 1.50%) and the downside risk is -1.00% (ie a rate of 0.25%).

P
age 30



Document is Restricted

Page 31

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 33

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 55

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 63

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Treasury Management Strategy Statement - Key Decision
	TM Strategy 2019-20 - Appendix A

	9 Exempt report - Acquisition update
	Appendix 1 - DRAFT Acquisition Report
	Annex 1 AcquisitionofsitesintheBoroughCabinetreport
	Annex 1  AcquisitionofsitesintheBoroughconfidentialAppendix1


